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Sponsor Markers - Diversity

1. Virginia Teachers Association
Sponsor: Virginia Education Association
Locality: Lynchburg
Proposed Location: 901 Jackson St.
Sponsor Contact: John O’Neil, joneil@veanea.org    

Original text:

Virginia Teachers Association
The Virginia Teachers Reading Circle was organized in the Jackson Street Methodist Episcopal Church on this site on Aug. 13, 1887. The Circle was created to provide professional development for teachers serving black students in Virginia’s public schools. Educators attending the Summer Teachers Institute held here voted to create the Reading Circle, naming Dr. James Hugo Johnston as its first president. In 1890 the name was changed to the Virginia State Negro Teachers Association, shortened to the Virginia Teachers Association in 1948. The Association served black educators until merging with the Virginia Education Association on Jan. 1, 1967.

98 words


Edited text:

Virginia Teachers Association
African American educators organized the Virginia Teachers’ Reading Circle here at the Jackson Street Methodist Episcopal Church on 13 Aug. 1887. Established during a session of the Peabody Normal Institute, a summer course for teachers from across the state, the Reading Circle provided professional development for teachers of black students in Virginia’s public schools. James Hugo Johnston, second president of what is now Virginia State University, was elected to lead the organization. Later known as the Virginia Teachers Association, the group served black educators until it merged with the Virginia Education Association on 1 Jan. 1967.

96 words


Sources:

James H. Johnston, “Lynchburg Institute,” Seventeenth Annual Report of the Superintendent of Public Instruction of the State of Virginia (1887), 57-65.
Luther P. Jackson, A History of the Virginia State Teachers Association (Norfolk: The Guide Publishing Company, Inc., 1937).
John M. Gandy, “The Virginia State Teachers Association: An Historical Sketch,” The Virginia Teachers Bulletin (January 1933).
J. Rupert Picott, History of the Virginia Teachers Association (Washington, D.C.: The National Education Association, 1975).
A Guide to the James Hugo Johnston Sr. Papers, 1865-1914, Virginia State University.
VEA News (Dec. 1966).
William H. Johnson Jr., Keeping the Promise: 150 Years of Advocacy for Children and Public Education (Richmond: The Virginia Education Association, 2014).
Norfolk Journal and Guide, 12 Nov. 1966.


2. St. John School—Rosenwald Funded
Sponsor: St. John Family Life and Fitness Center, Inc.
Locality: Albemarle County
Proposed Location: 1569 St. John Road, Keswick
Sponsor Contact: Kelvin Hawkins, kkrrhawk1@aol.com   

Original text:

St. John Elementary School
The St. John Elementary School, a Rosenwald School was built in part by Julius Rosenwald in 1922.  The Julius Rosenwald fund provided $700.00. The African Americans and the local government provided $1800.00. There are 370 historic Rosenwald schools identified in Virginia. St. John Elementary School is one of seven schools in Albemarle County. The construction of these schools was a joint effort between B. T. Washington and Julius Rosenwald to improve the quality of education in the South for segregated African American schools.  In the 1950’s the school was abandoned.  On April 11, 1957 the Rivanna School District sold the property to Thomas W. Paige for $1527.50.  In 1959 the property was purchased by James and Gillie Gardner for $4950.00. They converted the property to a private residence.  In 2001, the St. John Baptist Church purchased the property to renovate to a Family Life Center.

145 words


Edited text:

St. John School—Rosenwald Funded
The St. John School, built here in 1922-1923, served African American students during the segregation era. Julius Rosenwald, president of Sears, Roebuck and Co., collaborated with Booker T. Washington in a school-building campaign beginning in 1912. The Rosenwald Fund, incorporated in 1917, helped build more than 5,000 schools and supporting structures for African Americans in the rural South by 1932. The Rosenwald Fund contributed $700 for the St. John School, while local residents donated $500 and Albemarle County provided $1,300. The two-classroom school closed during the 1950s and was later purchased by St. John Baptist Church.

96 words


Sources:

Fisk University Rosenwald Database

Southwest Mountains Rural Historic District National Register nomination (1992)

St. John School Rehabilitation Best Practices Manual (June 2014)

Albemarle County Deed, 25 June 1957.

http://www.stjohnfamilylife.org/

http://www.locohistory.org/blog/albemarle/2008/09/29/rosenwald-schools/


3. First Baptist Church
Sponsor: First Baptist Church
Locality: Northumberland County
Proposed Location: 3585 Courthouse Road, Heathsville
Sponsor Contact: Carlton Lewis, cendroc7@aol.com  

Original text:

First Baptist Church
Prior to 1866, black folks who lived in or near Knights Run did not have a place of their own to worship.  Prayer meetings were held at the home of Alexander Day.  In 1866, Emily Howland, built Howland School to be used for educational, religious and civic meetings. August revivals were held at a brush harbor to the north of Howland School.  On 24 March 1888, the first trustees of First Baptist Church, Robert Pope, Lewis Montague and Benjamin Butler, purchased 21 acres across from Howland Chapel and in 1892 built the first black Baptist church in the Northern Neck.  In 1938, Rev. H.C. Roane led the church in the erection of the edifice where worship continues today.  This edifice, called the “Country Cathedral” by Dr. Ralph Felton in his book entitled “Dark Glory”, was completed and dedicated in 1941.

140 words



Edited text:

First Baptist Church
First Baptist Church, the earliest African American Baptist congregation in Northumberland County, originated in 1866 when black members of Coan Baptist Church began holding worship services at the home of Alexander Day. They later worshiped at Howland Chapel School, built just north of here in 1867 with funding from New York-born educator, reformer, and philanthropist Emily Howland. Revivals were held under a nearby brush arbor. Led by the Rev. Daniel Payne, pastor for more than 30 years, the congregation erected its first sanctuary here in 1892. The present Gothic Revival-style sanctuary was completed in 1941 under the guidance of longtime pastor Rev. Henry C. Roane.

105 words


Sources:

Thomas A. Wolf, ed., Historic Sites in Virginia’s Northern Neck and Essex County: A Guide (2011), 129-130.
“Historical Statement,” First Baptist Church (26 Oct. 2011).
“125th Anniversary of the First Baptist Church” (1991)
Howland Chapel School, National Register nomination (1991).
Coan Baptist Church, National Register nomination (1995).
“The History of First Baptist Church,” The Commemorative Ceremony for Reverend Paymus Nutt (2016).
Cherry Baylor, “Emancipation, Land, and Education: Emily Howland Discovers Northumberland County during Reconstruction,” Bulletin of the Northumberland County Historical Society (2011), 79-92.
Rappahannock Record, 7 Aug. 1941.
Guide to the Emily Howland Papers, 1797-1938, Cornell University Library.
Harry V. Richardson, Dark Glory: A Picture of the Church among Negroes in the Rural South (1947)

Sponsor Markers
1. John Pratt Hungerford (1761-1833)
Sponsor: Northern Neck of Virginia Historical Society
Locality: Westmoreland County
Proposed Location: Rte. 637 (Leedstown Road) at entrance to Leedstown Camp Grounds
Sponsor Contact: Stuart Butler, srtb@widomaker.com  

Original text:

John Pratt Hungerford (1761-1833)
Buried one mile east is John Pratt Hungerford, who was an officer in the Revolutionary War. He also served for many years in the Virginia General Assembly and was elected to the U.S. Congress from 1811 to 1817. As a brigadier general in the Virginia militia during the War of 1812 he defended the Northern Neck from repeated British raids in the summer of 1814. He also commanded the Virginia militia stationed below Alexandria in September 1814 in an attempt to destroy British naval ships descending the Potomac. He died at his plantation Twiford on 21 December 1833.

98 words


Edited text:

John Pratt Hungerford (1761-1833)
John Pratt Hungerford, born nearby, was an officer in the Revolutionary War and the War of 1812. He represented this area in the Virginia General Assembly for many years and served in the United States House of Representatives during the 1810s. As a brigadier general in the Virginia militia, he defended the Northern Neck during repeated British raids in the summer of 1814. Militiamen under his command attempted to destroy British naval ships carrying looted goods away from Alexandria on the Potomac River in Sept. 1814. Hungerford died on 21 Dec. 1833 at Twiford, his nearby plantation, and is buried one mile east of here.

105 words



Sources:

John H. Gwathmey, Historical Register of Virginians in the Revolution, 1775-1783, 404.
Pension application of John P. Hungerford, 1 Oct. 1832
Stuart L. Butler, Defending the Old Dominion: Virginia and Its Militia in the War of 1812 (Lanham, MD: University Press of America, Inc., 2013).
Calendar of Virginia State Papers, 10: 362-363, 367-370.
Wesley Gant, “The Fall of Washington and the Battle of White House Landing,” https://www.nps.gov/fowa/learn/historyculture/the-fall-of-fort-washington-and-the-battle-of-white-house-landing.htm
Biographical Directory of the United States Congress
Cynthia Miller Leonard, ed., The General Assembly of Virginia (1978)

2. Italians in Richmond
Sponsor: The Order Sons of Italy, Giuseppe Verdi Lodge #315
Locality: Richmond City
Proposed Location: Pollock Park
Sponsor Contact: Ray Gargiulo, 804-422-3155, thepaintingclass@gmail.com

Original text:

Hidden Little Italy
Post WWI Richmond was booming. Umberto Balducci knew a great city needs artisans and many lived in the hilltowns back home in Barga, Lucca, Sangiovanni & Viccopisano, of Tuscany, in Northern Italy.  Under the sponsorship of Balducci skilled stonemasons, plasterers & cement men came to Richmond and worked on downtown buildings adding the distinctly European style of today’s Richmond architecture. Richmond had the first electric streetcar lines, enabling the Italians to move from rooms in Navy Hill & Shockoe to homes in North Highland Park. Settling near Balducci’s Villa and living as a community served to insulate the families from prevailing prejudices and hasten integration into mainstream America. Carolina, Delaware, Enslow, Florida, Maryland Avenues, & Young Street composed Hidden “Little Italy” for 96 Italian families from 1925 to 1960.

129 words


Edited text:

Italians in Richmond
Italian immigrants were a small but cohesive segment of Richmond’s population by the 1850s. Local artist Ferruccio Legnaioli, who employed many Italian immigrant artisans, influenced the cityscape with his ornamental designs for the facades of prominent buildings early in the 20th century. In 1927 the Italian-American community gave the city a statue of Christopher Columbus, designed by Legnaioli and erected near Byrd Park. From the 1920s to the 1960s about 100 families, primarily from Tuscany, resided in a tight-knit “Little Italy” here in North Highland Park. Central to community life were restauranteur Umberto Balducci’s villa, the Italian Club, and St. Elizabeth Catholic Church.

103 words


Sources:

Brenda Stankus interviews with former residents, summer 2016
Richmond City Directories, 1920s-1960s
Harry Kollatz Jr. “Legnaioli’s Legacy,” Richmond (Nov. 1995), 53-57.
Rudolph H. Bunzl, “Immigrants in Richmond after the Civil War, 1865-1880,” M.A. Thesis, University of Richmond, 1994.
Gerald P. Fogarty, S.J., Commonwealth Catholicism (Notre Dame, IN: University of Notre Dame Press, 2001).
John T. Kneebone, “’It Must Be a Hoax’: Protest, Cultural Pride, and Richmond’s Columbus Statue, Virginia Cavalcade (Autumn 1992), 84-95.
Richmond Times-Dispatch, 26 March 1913.

3. Blue Ridge Turnpike
Sponsor: Madison County Historical Society
Locality: Madison County
Proposed Location: 1106 Old Blue Ridge Turnpike, Madison
Sponsor Contact: Maxwell Lacy, maxlacy@vabb.com

Original text:

Blue Ridge Turnpike
Completed in 1853, the Blue Ridge Turnpike ran 56 miles from New Market to Gordonsville. Built by the Blue Ridge Turnpike Company, construction cost $176,000, issued in stock bonds purchased by citizens and the Commonwealth of Virginia. Nine toll gates along the road’s length were manned by local landowners hired by the Company. The turnpike linked the Shenandoah Valley to eastern markets and the Orange & Alexandria Railroad in Gordonsville. Damage during the Civil War caused the road to be abandoned as a turnpike, and its maintenance turned over to the counties along its route ca. 1870. Some of the turnpike’s original alignment exists along segments of State Routes 231 and 670, and present-day trails in Shenandoah National Park. 
119 words


Edited text:

Blue Ridge Turnpike
The Blue Ridge Turnpike, completed in 1853, passed near here on its 56-mile route from the vicinity of New Market to the railhead in Gordonsville. Crossing the mountains at Fishers Gap, the road linked the Shenandoah Valley to markets in the east. The Blue Ridge Turnpike Company financed the $176,000 project by selling shares of stock to individuals and to the Commonwealth of Virginia. After the road sustained heavy damage during the Civil War, the company abandoned it. Counties along the route took over maintenance about 1870. Traces of the original alignment exist along State Routes 231 and 670 and within Shenandoah National Park. 

104 words


Sources:

Blue Ridge Turnpike Company records, 1850-1868 (Library of Virginia)
Gordonsville Historic District, National Register Nomination (1983)
Ann B. Miller, “Identification and Application of Criteria for Determining National Register Eligibility of Roads in Virginia,” (March 2003), 66-77.
Darwin Lambert, The Undying Past of Shenandoah National Park (1989), 92-93.
Acts of the General Assembly of the State of Virginia, 1847-48, 206-207.
Acts of the General Assembly of the State of Virginia, 1849-50, 85-86.
Acts of the General Assembly of the State of Virginia, 1866-67, 552-553, 678.
Governor’s Message and Annual Reports…. (1851), 8-20.

Replacement Markers (Sponsor-funded)

1. Gen. George C. Marshall House
Sponsor: George C. Marshall House
Locality: Leesburg
Proposed Location: 312 East Market Street
Sponsor Contact: Laurie Van Hook, lvanhook@georgecmarshall.org 

Original text:

Dodona Manor—Home of Gen. George C. Marshall
This early-19th-century house and its surrounding four acres were purchased in 1941 by Gen. Marshall (1880-1959) and his wife, Katherine Tupper Marshall (1882-1978). A student of the classics, Marshall called the house, in its grove of oaks, "Dodona Manor" after the ancient Greek oracle that spoke through oak leaves. This was their home during the years of Marshall's great achievements as military chief of staff during World War II, presidential emissary to China in 1945, secretary of state (1947-1949), and secretary of defense (1950-1951). The Marshall Plan for restoring war-torn Europe won Marshall the Nobel Prize in 1953.
98 words


Edited text (replacement marker):

Gen. George C. Marshall House
Gen. George C. Marshall (1880-1959) and his wife, Katherine Tupper Marshall (1882-1978), purchased this early-19th-century house and its surrounding four acres in 1941. They lived here during the years of Marshall's great achievements as Army chief of staff during World War II, presidential emissary to China (1945-46), secretary of state (1947-49), and secretary of defense (1950-51). The European Recovery Plan, known as the Marshall Plan, reconstructed war-torn Europe and won Marshall the Nobel Peace Prize in 1953. The Gen. George C. Marshall House, earlier known as Oak Hill and Dodona Manor, was designated a National Historic Landmark in 1996.


99 words


Sources:

http://marshallfoundation.org
William F. Sanford Jr., The Marshall Plan: Origins and Implementation (U.S. Dept. of State)
Gen. George C. Marshall House, National Historic Landmark Nomination (1996)
Dodona Manor advertised in House and Garden Magazine (July 1940)
Forrest C. Pogue, George C. Marshall, Organizer of Victory, 1943-1945 (New York: Viking Press, 1973), and George C. Marshall, Statesman, 1945-1959 (New York: Viking Press, 1987); with Foreword by Drew Middleton.

www.georgecmarshall.org/History 

2. Mullins Family XB-13
Sponsor: Dickenson County Historical Society
Locality: Dickenson County
Proposed Location: Rte. T-1009, at Rte. 83, Clintwood
Sponsor Contact: Susan Mullins, dchs1880@yahoo.com 

Original text:

John Mullins XB-13
Near here on Holly Creek, John Mullins settled in 1829, becoming the second settler in Dickenson County. His father John Mullins, the only known Revolutionary War soldier resting in this county, spent his last years here with his son. He died in 1849 and is buried nearby.

47 words


Edited text:

Mullins Family XB-13
John and Ollie (Cox) Mullins and their children, the first permanent settlers of European descent in this area, came here from North Carolina about 1829. The family lived along Holly Creek and claimed thousands of acres of land in the vicinity. Mullins’s father, also named John Mullins, was reputed to have fought at the Battle of King’s Mountain (1780) during the Revolutionary War. He spent his last years here with his son and died in 1849. Both father and son are buried on nearby knolls. The town of Holly Creek, later known as Clintwood, became the seat of Dickenson County in 1882. Many Mullins descendants reside in the county. 

109 words


Sources:

Elihu Jasper Sutherland, ed., Pioneer Recollections of Southwest Virginia (2007)
Judith Parks America Hill, A History of Henry County, Virginia (1925)
Historical Sketches of Southwest Virginia (Southwest Virginia Historical Society, 1974)


TEA-Funded Marker - Diversity

1. Pamunkey Indians in the Civil War

Sponsor: DHR (TEA)
Locality: King William County
Proposed Location: intersection of King William Rd (Rt. 30) and Powhatan Trail (Rt. 633)
Sponsor Contact: Ashley Atkins Spivey  

Original text:

Pamunkey Indians in the Civil War
Throughout the Civil War the Pamunkey Indian Tribe engaged Union encampments that settled on and near the Reservation, approx.10 miles southeast from this location. Gen. McClellan was the first to arrive in May 1862, Gen. Dix in 1863, and Gen. Sheridan’s Calvary in 1864, 1865. Given their intimate knowledge of Virginia’s waterways, 10 -14 Pamunkey men enlisted with McClellan’s Army of the Potomac to serve in the Peninsula Campaign as land guides, scouts, gunboat pilots, and spies. As Union supporters, Pamunkey men were “pressed” into Confederate service and imprisoned at Richmond’s Castle Thunder. Pamunkey women, the elderly, and others not enlisted provided intelligence, shelter, safe passage, food and supplies for Union troops. While encamped along the banks of the Pamunkey River, soldiers “conscripted” the personal property of Reservation residents. In 1870 the community coordinated an effort to file for compensation from the U.S. Southern Claims Commission. Unlike most SCC claims, 86% of those filed by Pamunkey individuals were awarded.

159 words


Edited text:

Pamunkey Indians in the Civil War
Residents of the Pamunkey Reservation, ten miles southeast of here, aided Union troops during the Civil War. About a dozen Pamunkey men enlisted as guides, scouts, gunboat pilots, and spies for Maj. Gen. George B. McClellan’s Army of the Potomac during the Peninsula Campaign in 1862. Women and the elderly provided intelligence, shelter, safe passage, food, and supplies for Union troops. Confederate authorities pressed Pamunkey men into service as laborers and punished others for their Unionism with imprisonment at Richmond’s Castle Thunder. After the war many Pamunkey Indians won compensation from the federal Southern Claims Commission for property damaged or taken by Union soldiers.

104 words


Sources:

Bradby, Terrill [6306]. E.732, SCC Settled Case Files, Box 371 U.S. National Archives.

Bradby, Thomas [15142]. E.732, SCC Settled Case Files, Box 371 U.S. National Archives.

Cook, Caroline [21816]. E.732, SCC Settled Case Files, Box 371 U.S. National Archives.

Langston, William [81949]. E.732, SCC Settled Case Files, Box 371 U.S. National Archives.

Wheely, William [19202]. E.732, SCC Settled Case Files, Box 371 U.S. National Archives.

“The Pamunkey Indians,” Richmond Daily Dispatch, July 23, 1862.

“The Pamunkey Indians,” Richmond Daily Dispatch, August 1, 1862.

“Local Matters. Dangerous Characters,” Richmond Daily Dispatch, August 8, 1863.

Laurence M. Hauptman, “River Pilots and Swamp Guerrillas: Pamunkey and Lumbee Unionists,” in Between Two Fires: American Indians in the Civil War (New York: Free Press Paperbacks, Simon and Schuster Inc., 1995).
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